
 

PC Minutes 3-27-14 

 

 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 
                                                3 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Minutes of Planning Commission Meeting held on  5 
Thursday, March 27, 2014 6 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 7 
County of Weber, State of Utah          8 

_____________________________________________________________________ 9 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds  11 
Commissioner Scott Barker 12 
Commissioner Larry Weir 13 
Commissioner Dan Johnson 14 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan- excused 15 
Commissioner Charles Allen 16 
Commissioner Scott Larsen-excused   17 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 18 
City Building Official Jeff Monroe 19 
 20 
Others Present  21 
None 22 

  23 
 24 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 25 
 26 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 27 
 28 

3. WELCOME  29 
 30 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 31 
 32 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 33 
 Motion by Commissioner Johnson 34 
 Seconded by Commissioner Allen 35 

 to approve the agenda 36 
 Approved unanimously (5-0) 37 

  38 
        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 27, 2014 39 

Motion by Commissioner Allen 40 
Seconded by Commissioner Weir 41 

To approve the minutes for February 27, 2014 42 
Approved unanimously (5-0) 43 

5.    NEW BUSINESS               44 
 45 
             5.1  DISCUSSION: WATER SHORTAGE & CONSERVATION ORDINANCE 46 



 

PC Minutes 3-27-14 

 

 

Monroe stated that the city Water Conservation Plan was approved in 2010. He stated that he 47 
had concerns about enforcing code on dry and dead grass in the event of a water shortage. He 48 
explained that it would be a policy decision by Council on how and when to enforce during a 49 
water shortage. He stated that Council would need to decide when to address a level 1 (warning), 50 
2 (emergency) or 3 (crisis) situation. Monroe explained that there have been years where the city 51 
could have encountered a water issue. He wants to clarify who will make the decision to save 52 
water for essential purposes. The ordinance would make the Council responsible for making the 53 
decision as to when to invoke which level of water conservation management. 54 
 55 
Commissioner Allen suggested several changes, which include: 56 
-Adding the City Manager as an authority, as he would be one of the first to know if there is a 57 
water crisis and can inform the others through a chain of command. Monroe stated that the City 58 
Manager would be the one to pass on information and concerns to City Council. The City 59 
Council would then need to make a declaration before Monroe would be able to enforce any 60 
restrictions. 61 
-Line 75: Would like to add “(g) acts of sabotage or vandalism”. 62 
-Lines 76 and 104: Would like to be consistent with the phrase “permanent seasonal water 63 
conservation measures”. It was suggested to use the phrase “standard seasonal water 64 
conservation measures.” 65 
-Lines 107 and 136: Would like to change the word “airplane” to “aircraft”. 66 
-Line 135: Add the phrase “vegetable garden”. 67 
-Line 207:  Commissioner Allen would not like to terminate water, stating possible health and 68 
sanitation factors. Monroe stated that in this situation, water termination applies to people who 69 
are abusing their water privileges. Chairman Reynolds stated that the circumstances are 70 
identified in the section concerning restriction. Commissioner Weir stated that he likes the way 71 
the ordinance is worded, noting that sometimes the situation calls for a restriction or termination 72 
of water. Commissioner Barker agreed with the wording of the section.  73 
Monroe stated that the Council should be able to make the decision if there is a water allocation 74 
issue. 75 
Commissioner Allen wanted to add a “Right of Entry” section to the ordinance. He read the 76 
proposed paragraph and the suggestions will be forwarded to legal for review. 77 
Monroe stated that the ordinance is in the initial phase and will be brought back to Planning 78 
Commission possibly several times before it goes before Council. 79 
Commissioner Allen inquired as to how the city will notify residents of water emergencies. 80 
Monroe stated that there are several plans in place, one of which being reverse 9-1-1 calls. 81 
Commissioner Weir suggested that there be a section concerning city responsibility to care of 82 
city leaks as well, noting that there was a leak by his home for several weeks. 83 
Chairman Reynolds stated that he has noted that city property uses culinary water to water its 84 
grounds and parks, even though some of the property has the plumbing for secondary water. 85 
Monroe stated that the ordinance addresses those concerns. He stated that he will speak with the 86 
public works department as to where we are in the process of converting grounds to secondary 87 
water. 88 
Monroe asked that any further comments or suggestions be emailed to him while he is re-89 
working the ordinance. A re-worded draft will be sent to the Commission for review. 90 

 91 
 92 
 93 



 

PC Minutes 3-27-14 

 

 

             5.2  DISCUSSION: AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 8.16.040 OF THE  94 
                    MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO NUISANCE DECLARED   95 
Monroe stated that as the Code Enforcement Officer, he has continual problems with homes that 96 
have lawns with dry and dead grass. Current nuisance code does not state “dry or dead grass”, 97 
but refers to it as “neglected grass”. He would like add the clarification of “dry and dead grass” 98 
into nuisance code to make it easier to enforce. 99 
Monroe also stated that he would like to add a section concerning overnight parking on city 100 
property and city parks. He stated that this section appears in another title of the ordinance but 101 
would like to include it in this title as well. 102 
He stated that he would like to make it easier for people to understand and find nuisance 103 
violations by keeping all the violations together in one section. He noted that he feels that he 104 
would have better success in accomplishing the goal of people keeping their yards in order if 105 
residents understood what is considered a nuisance. 106 

 107 
Commissioner Allen suggested adding another nuisance to the section that would explain animal 108 
nuisances. Monroe stated that title 6 incorporates animal ordinances. Monroe stated that he can 109 
add line 47 and reference title 6 concerning animals. 110 
Commissioner Allen suggested expanding on item 37 to include the following: “parking any 111 
motor vehicle within 15 feet of a fire hydrant and 20 feet of a crosswalk.” Commissioner Barker 112 
clarified that the vehicle would have to be on the street. Monroe stated that he would have to 113 
check with legal counsel and state code concerning the issue. He noted that there are a lot of 114 
smaller lots and it is hard for them to park anywhere else. Chairman Reynolds noted that the fire 115 
hydrants are marked with red paint and law enforcement usually only tickets if the vehicle is 116 
within the marked area.  117 
Commissioner Allen noted several typographical errors that would need to be corrected.  118 
Monroe stated that hard surface is defined as concrete or asphalt, noting that some people would 119 
like to use gravel as their hard surface. He explained that the Council has stated in the past that 120 
they do not want to change the definition of hard surface. Monroe wanted to know the Planning 121 
Commission’s thoughts on hard surfaces. Monroe stated that he deals with the issue of gravel RV 122 
pads and parking every year. He stated that every year residents become very frustrated and 123 
question if the city is willing to change the requirements. Chairman Reynolds stated that if the 124 
ordinance was changed to reflect gravel surfaces, there would need to be specific procedures on 125 
how it was applied to ward off grass and weeds that would come through. Chairman Reynolds 126 
suggested keeping the ordinance as it is currently written. Commissioner Barker agreed, noting 127 
that the change to gravel could be abused.  128 
Chairman Reynolds asked clarification on what constitutes “unlawful pollution” and suggested 129 
that a definition be given in the code. He also would like clarification on what constitutes “liquid 130 
waste”.  131 
Chairman Reynolds asked if the reference to stables and corrals was still needed. He would also 132 
like to add to line 20 to reference the section of the code that clarifies what types of trees, bushes 133 
and shrubs are allowed in the city. 134 
Chairman Reynolds suggested that the ICC codes and standards be referenced in line 32 135 
concerning property maintenance. 136 
He also questioned if burn permits included fire pits. Monroe stated that fire pits are regulated 137 
through building codes. 138 

 139 
           140 



 

PC Minutes 3-27-14 

 

 

     6.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  141 
          ZONING ISSUES 142 
Monroe stated that the credit union is still working on a floor layout. 143 
Monroe stated that there have been some issues with the Adams Ave. Project, which is being 144 
reviewed by the Public Works Director.  145 
Monroe stated that the Stonehenge Assisted Living Facility is moving along, however there are 146 
some issues concerning designs. He stated that Weber Basin Water is concerned about water 147 
lines. He noted that the designs should be completed soon. Monroe stated that the center cannot 148 
move in until the road is completed. 149 

 150 
7. UPCOMING EVENTS    151 

April 1St : City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 152 
April 15th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 153 
April 24th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 154 

 155 

8. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   156 
Motion by Commissioner Barker 157 

Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 158 
To adjourn the meeting 159 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 160 
Time: 7:06 p.m. 161 

 162 
______________________________          _____________________________ 163 
Date Approved                                            City Recorder 164 


